
BENTON COUNTY 

STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT FUND 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

STIF PROJECT REVIEW WORKSHOP (PART II) AGENDA 
Monday, March 15, 2019, 8:00 – 12:00 pm  

Benton County Public Works, 360 SW Avery Avenue, Corvallis 
Upper Conference Room #205 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order, Introductions (2 minutes)  

    

2. Public Comment Period (Speakers limited to 3 minutes) 

 

3. Approve Minutes of January 18, 2019 Meeting  (2 minutes) 

 

4. Old Business  (90 minutes) 
a) STIF Formula Projects - Review Staff Report  
b) Develop Formula Project Recommendation for BOC 

 
5. New Business  (60 minutes) 

a) STIF Discretionary Projects - Review Staff Report  
b) Develop Recommendation for ODOT  

 
6. Next Steps (3 minutes) 

a) Tuesday, April 2 10:00am – Board of Commissioners Work Session 

b) Tuesday, April 16 12:00pm – Board of Commissioners Meeting 

c) Wednesday, May 1 – STIF Plans Due to ODOT   

 

NEXT MEETING (if needed):   Monday, April 1, 2019, 8:30-10:00 am 
 

Benton County STIF Advisory Committee and Staff: 
 Commissioner Annabelle Jaramillo (Liaison)          Dylan Ross Horne (Chair; BPAB; CROW) Linda Modrell (Vice-Chair; LBCC)  
 Hal Brauner (Linn-Benton Loop)  Meredith Williams (OSU)  Pat Hare (City of Adair Village) 
 Janeece Cook (Strengthening Rural Families) Mary Steckel (City of Corvallis/CTS) Rocky Sloan (ex-officio; Philomath) 
 Gary Stockhoff (ex-officio; Benton Co.)  Nick Meltzer (CAMPO)      Lisa Scherf  (STIF Rules Committee) 
 Lee K. Lazaro – STIF AC Staff  Debie Wyne – STIF AC Staff 



 

2019 Meeting Schedule  
 

Monday, April 1, 2019 (Placeholder - Cancel Unless Needed ) 
8:30 – 10:00 am 

 Tuesday, April 2, 2019, 10:00 am Board of Commissioners Worksession   
 

Tuesday, April 16, 2019, noon – Board of Commissioners – Adoption of STIF Plan  
 

Wednesday May 1, 2019 – STIF PLANS DUE TO ODOT 
 

Monday, May 6, 2019 (Placeholder - Cancel Unless Needed For Plan Revision* ) 
8:30 – 10:30 am 

 
Monday, June 3, 2019 (Placeholder -Cancel Unless Needed For Plan Revision* ) 

8:30 – 10:30 am 
 

Monday, July 1, 2019 (Placeholder -Cancel Unless Needed For Plan Revision* ) 
8:30 – 10:30 am 

 
Monday, August 5, 2019 (Placeholder -Cancel Unless Needed For Plan Revision* ) 

8:30 – 10:30 am 
 

Monday, September 2, 2019 (Placeholder -Cancel Unless Needed For Plan Revision* ) 
8:30 – 10:30 am 

 
*  If review and approval of a STIF Plan revision is required, it is likely the Committee would only need to meet 

on one of these five dates – but exactly when that date would occur is unknown at this time.  
 

ALL MEETINGS ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
 

Meeting facility:  Avery Building, 360 SW Avery Avenue, Corvallis, OR 97333 
In the Upper Conference Room #205 on the second floor (unless otherwise noticed). 

The Avery Building is accessible to the public. 
 

This Agenda and the accompanying Minutes are available in alternate format upon request. 
For an alternate format, or if you have any questions, please contact Cathy Williams, STF Assistant, at 

cathy.williams@corvallisoregon.gov    541-766-6729  ext. 5012 

mailto:cathy.williams@corvallisoregon.gov


 

X:\Divisions\Engineering & Transportation\Transportation\Special Transportation Program\House Bill 2017\STIF ADVISORY COMMITTEE\STIF 
Formula Workshop 3-4-19\STIF Meeting Docs\STIF Minutes 1.18.19 - DRAFT.docx Page 1 

Benton County Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund  
Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 

January 18, 2019 from 8:30 AM – 9:30 AM 
Benton County Public Works 

Upper Conference Room #205 
360 S.W. Avery Avenue 

Corvallis, Oregon  97333 
 
Committee Members Present:  Meredith Williams, Linda Modrell, Janeece Cook, Hal Brauner, 
Pat Hare, Gary Stockhoff (ex-officio, Benton County), Annabelle Jaramillo (Commissioner) 
 
Committee Members Absent:  Mary Steckel, Dylan Horne (Chair), Nick Meltzer (ex-officio, 
CAMPO) 
 
Staff Members Present:  Lee Lazaro, Debie Wyne, Lisa Scherf (STIF Rules Committee member), 
Cathy Williams (Recorder), Jenn Ryun (Benton County Finance) 
 
Guests:  Mark Bernard (Oregon Department of Transportation) 
 
1. Call Meeting to Order  
The meeting was called to order at 8:10 AM by Linda Modrell, Committee Vice-Chair. 
 
2. Public Comments   
No public comments received since last meeting. 
 
3. Approve Minutes of December 3, 2018   
Janeece Cook made a motion, Meredith Williams seconded the motion, and the minutes were 
approved unanimously. 
 
4. Old Business 
 

a) Copies of Board of Commissioners Presentation & Staff Report: 
STIF Committee Activities Update – Lee Lazaro reviewed Committee activities thus far.  
He and Debie Wyne both noted that this Committee is very productive. 

 
Definition of Communities with a High Percentage of Low-Income Communities – Mr. 
Lazaro provided for the member’s binders copies of the final approved definition of 
communities with a “high percentage of low-income households”. 
 
Sub-Allocation Methodology Option – Mr. Lazaro provided for the member’s binders 
copies of the final approved Sub-Allocation Methodology worksheet. 



 

X:\Divisions\Engineering & Transportation\Transportation\Special Transportation Program\House Bill 2017\STIF ADVISORY COMMITTEE\STIF 
Formula Workshop 3-4-19\STIF Meeting Docs\STIF Minutes 1.18.19 - DRAFT.docx Page 2 

b) Updated STIF Solicitation Pack for Project Plans – Board of Commissioners (BOC) 
meetings are February 2nd and 16th; work sessions are February 19th and March 26th.  It 
is anticipated that the BOC will adopt the STIF Plan on April 16th to meet the May 1 
deadline for submission to ODOT.  Debie Wyne noted that staff needs to submit agenda 
materials two weeks in advance of BOC meetings. 

 
5. New Business 
 

a) Draft Evaluation Criteria & Checklist for STIF Project Plans – Lee Lazaro reviewed the 
draft “STIF Project Plan Evaluation Checklist”.  Meredith Williams suggested that there 
be a point awarded for “Yes” answers in each category provided, with a place for total 
point score per project. The Committee discussed several different scoring methods and 
questioned whether it was useful to rank projects first to last. Pat Hare made a motion 
to approve draft checklist as template. Hal Brauner seconded the motion and all 
approved. 
 

b) Review Updated 2019 Committee Meeting Schedule – Mr. Lazaro requested to cancel 
February 4th and meet on Monday, March 4th from 8:30 AM to 1 PM to review 
submitted individual project plans, using criteria list. Project application deadline would 
be Friday, February 15th and project packets to Committee members by Monday, 
February 25th.  Both February meetings are cancelled. Lee to revise schedule and 
distribute.   
 

c) Other New Business – Lee Lazaro received GIS maps from Nick Meltzer late on 
Thursday, January 17th, and distributed to Committee members.  Mr. Meltzer was not in 
attendance to explain the maps and legends. Lee will ask Nick to discuss maps further at 
the next Committee meeting.  

 
6. Special Announcement & Discussion - Mr. Lazaro announced his retirement at the end of 

January 2019 due to health issues.  He intends to work part-time to continue his work with 
this Committee. 
 

Conclusion:  The meeting adjourned at 9:10 AM. 

Next Meeting:  Monday, March 4th, 2019 from 8:30 AM to 1:30 PM (lunch provided) for STIF 
Project Plan Review Workshop. 



 
*** Memorandum *** 

 
 

TO:  Benton County STIF Advisory Committee 

FROM:  Lisa Scherf, Transportation Services Supervisor  
  Qualified Entity Representative 

SUBJECT:  STIF Formula Project Application Review – Part 2 

DATE:  March 15, 2019 

 

BACKGROUND  

At its March 4, 2019 meeting, the Benton County Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) Advisory 
Committee (Committee) heard presentations by applicants for Formula funds allocated to Benton County.  
The following Public Transportation Service Providers (PTSPs) submitted applications: Benton County, City of 
Corvallis (Corvallis Transit System), City of Philomath (Philomath Connection), Oregon Cascades West Council 
of Governments (OCWCOG), and the City of Albany (Albany Transit System and Linn Benton Loop).The total 
amount requested by applicants for the 100% project list ($4,523,700) exceeded the amount allocated to 
Benton County ($4,022,000) by $501,700.  A final decision on funding recommendations for the Benton 
County Board of Commissioners (BOC) was deferred to the March 15, 2019 meeting.  The Committee asked 
for further information from staff for that meeting; that information is included in this report. 

DISCUSSION 

To assist the Committee, staff prepared a new spreadsheet showing all the requested projects (Attachment A).  
Some of the columns are identical to Attachment C from the March 4, 2019 meeting, while the following 
columns are added: funding requests by fiscal year; the number of low-income households within ½-mile of 
the proposed service; anticipated rides provided by new services, and what percentage of the request is for 
expanding service versus maintaining service.   

It is important to note three things that have changed from the material presented at the March 4 meeting: 1) 
Project L, Benton County’s contribution to the Linn Benton Loop (Loop) has been removed from the project list 
since it duplicates the request directly from the Loop; 2) Project N, a reserve for future expansion of service 
for Adair Village and Monroe has been removed since service can be implemented with the next STIF 
biennium allocation without setting aside funds from this biennium; 3) the match for the Philomath 
Connection bus, Project F, was assumed to be 20% but only 10% is required; and 4) there is a significant 
reduction in the request from the Loop.  The Loop’s Service Development Plan is in the final stages of 
completion and assumptions about both capital needs and when expanded service would begin have been 
updated by the project consultant.  Projects S and T (new) of Attachment A reflect updated costs.  These four 
changes reduce the differential in the requested total vs. the Benton County allocations to $148,120, rather 
than the $501,700 presented at the March 4 STIF Advisory Committee meeting.   

Staff evaluated the project requests in order to assure that on-going operations projects can continue to be 
funded into the next biennial STIF period. Those projects are shown in Attachment A with gray shading.  The 
operations funding requests are summarized at the bottom of the 100% list in the “Total Operations Requests 
in FY20-21” field.  The request in the final year of this STIF period is assumed to be the starting place for the 
operations need going into the next STIF period.  The total of all on-going funding requests for FY20-21 is 
$1,590,900 and the full Benton County allocation for that same year is $1,787,000, for a cushion of $196,100.   



STIF Formula Project Review Staff Report 
March 15, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 

This indicates there will be funding in the next STIF period for operations projects started in this biennium, 
small capital projects, and operations projects for Adair Village and Monroe that may be identified in the 
OCWCOG’s 99W corridor study project.     

Although the operations project requests appear to be sustainable into the future, as noted above, the total 
amount of requested funds in the current biennium, both one-time capital and on-going projects, still exceeds 
Benton County’s allocation by $192,820.  This amount already accounts for the removal of the $150,000 
Benton County project for the Linn Benton Loop, the Adair Village and Monroe reserves, the overmatch for 
the Philomath Connection bus, and the updated (smaller) Loop request.  Providers have been asked to be 
prepared to address how their projects can be scaled back so the total stays within the allocation.   

Finally, ODOT has requested all QE’s submit projects in ranked order, even when the total amount of the 
requests is within the Benton County allocation.  Staff will bring several possible methodologies for working 
through this exercise.   

ACTION REQUESTED  

Review STIF Formula Projects received from area PTSPs, considering mandatory STIF review areas, sub-
allocation estimates for each PTSP recommended by the Committee and adopted by the Benton County Board 
of Commissioners, and local decision criteria.  Recommend Project funding levels and prioritization to BOC. 

 

Attachments: A – STIF Formula Project summary (dated March 15, 2019) highlighting capital vs. operations 
   



Attachment A     

Agency 
Rank PROJECT TITLE FY18-19 FY19-20 FY20-21 TOTAL Cost 

for FY19-21
Project 
Type

% Serving
Grades 

9-12

STIF 
Factors

Met

OPTP 
Goals
Met

Total STIF
Factor and

OPTP Goals

Low-Income 
Households 

Served (1/2-mi.)

Rides 
Anticipated 
(FY19-21)

% Expand Svc
 vs. Maintain

100% PROJECT LIST
City of Corvallis

1  A. Corvallis Transit System Service Enhancement - Task One -                882,700         1,091,000      1,973,700$    Oper. 4 3 8 11 21,786 356,700 100/0
1  A. Corvallis Transit System Service Enhancement - Task Two -                100,000         102,000         202,000$       Oper. 4 3 8 11 N/A N/A 100/0
2  B. CTS and Philomath Service Garage Expansion -                -                    550,000         550,000$       Capital 0 2 5 7 N/A N/A 80/20
3  C. Mid-Life Rebuild for CTS Buses -                80,000           120,000         200,000$       Capital 0 2 6 8 N/A N/A 60/40
4  D. CTS Bus Stop Amenities -                76,000           76,000$         Capital 4 3 3 6 N/A N/A 100/0
5  E. Bus Camera System Enhancement -                55,000           -                    55,000$         Capital 0 0 4 4 N/A N/A 20/80

Subtotal: City of Corvallis -$              1,193,700$    1,863,000$    3,056,700$    

City of Philomath
1  F.  Match for New (Replacement) Philomath Connection Bus -$              44,700$         -$                  44,700$         Capital 0 2 4 6 N/A N/A 100/0
2  G.  Philomath Connection Service Expansion - Task One -$              -$                  50,000$         50,000$         Oper. 4 3 8 11 4,743 6,020 100/0
2  G.  Philomath Connection Service Expansion - Task Two -$              -$                  5,000$           5,000$           Oper. 4 3 8 11 N/A N/A 100/0
3  H.  Philomath Connection Bus Stop Amenities -$              -$                  12,600$         12,600$         Capital 4 3 3 6 N/A N/A 100/0

Subtotal: City of Philomath -$              44,700$         67,600$         112,300$       

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments
1  I.  Match for 99W Transit Corridor Feas.Study/Pilot - Task One 5,000$      5,000$           -$                  10,000$         Planning 0 4 1 5 N/A N/A 100/0
1  I.  Match for 99W Transit Corridor Feas.Study/Pilot - Task Two -$              40,000$         -$                  40,000$         Capital 0 4 1 5 N/A N/A 100/0
1  I.  Match for 99W Transit Corridor Feas.Study/Pilot - Task Three -$              17,750$         15,000$         32,750$         Oper. 0 4 1 5 25,387 3,000 100/0

Subtotal: OCWCOG 5,000$      62,750$         15,000$         82,750$         

Benton County/Adair Village/Monroe
1  J.  Match for Federal 5339 Bus Grant -$              44,100$         -$                  44,100$         Capital 0 2 3 5 N/A N/A 60/40
2  K. Transit Service Capacity Expansion - Task 1 Fixed Route 17,170$    17,170$         17,170$         51,510$         Oper. 0 2 5 7 9,153 8,450 100/0
2  K. Transit Service Capacity Expansion - Task 2 Demand Resp. 27,620$    27,620$         27,620$         82,860$         Oper. 0 2 5 7 14,470 19,800 100/0
3  L.  L-B Loop Expansion - Benton Contribution -$              150,000$       -$                  150,000$       Capital --- --- --- --- --- --- ---
3  M. Computer-Aided Dispatch System 10,000$    110,000$       -$                  120,000$       Capital 0 2 4 6 N/A N/A 70/30
4  N. Adair Village/Monroe Reserve for 99W Expansion -$              -$                  70,410$         70,410$         Reserves --- --- --- --- --- --- ---
5  O. Match for Coast to Valley Expansion -$              19,700$         19,700$         39,400$         Oper. 0 3 5 8 755 7,850 100/0

Subtotal: Benton County 54,790$    218,590$       134,900$       337,870$       

Benton County STIF Advisory Committee Formula Project Summary by FY - March 15, 2019



Attachment A     

Agency 
Rank PROJECT TITLE FY18-19 FY19-20 FY20-21 TOTAL Cost 

for FY19-21
Project 
Type

% Serving
Grades 

9-12

STIF 
Factors

Met

OPTP 
Goals
Met

Total STIF
Factor and

OPTP Goals

Low-Income 
Households 

Served (1/2-mi.)

Rides 
Anticipated 
(FY19-21)

% Expand Svc
 vs. Maintain

Benton County STIF Advisory Committee Formula Project Summary by FY - March 15, 2019

City of Albany (North Albany)
1  P. Bus Purchase for Albany Transit System (North Albany svc) -$              75,000$         -$                  75,000$         Capital 0 4 5 9 N/A N/A 100/0
2  Q. Expanded North Albany ATS Bus Service -$              -$                  75,000$         75,000$         Oper. 1 5 6 11 830 140,000 100/0

Subtotal: City of Albany -$              75,000$         75,000$         150,000$       

Linn-Benton Loop Regional Service
1  R. L-B Loop Bus Expansion -$              264,000$       264,000$       Capital 0 6 6 12 N/A N/A 100/0
2  S. Expanded L-B Loop Operations -$              38,500$         118,000$       156,500$       Oper. 1 6 8 14 5,020 224,000 100/0
3  T. L-B Loop Bus Stop Amenities 5,000$           5,000$           10,000$         Capital 1 3 3 6 N/A N/A 100/0

Subtotal: Linn-Benton Loop -$              43,500$         387,000$       430,500$       

Total for All Agencies in Benton County Allocation 676,000$  1,559,000$    1,787,000$    4,022,000$    

 Grand Total: 100% STIF Project List 59,790$    1,638,240$    2,542,500$    4,170,120$    (148,120)$     

Total Operations Requests in FY20-21 1,590,900$    196,100$ 

130% PROJECT LIST

City of Corvallis
1  CTS Fleet Electrification - Task One 90,000$         Capital
1  CTS Fleet Electrification - Task Two 810,000$       Capital

Subtotal: City of Corvallis 900,000$       
130% Sub-allocation for Corvallis 929,360$       

City of Philomath
1  Philomath Connection Service Expansion (Continued) 47,100$         Oper.

Subtotal: City of Philomath 47,100$         
130% Sub-allocation for Philomath 48,110$         

Benton County/Adair Village/Monroe
1  Boys & Girls Club "Training Teens for Tomorrow" 8,050$      16,100$         16,100$         40,250$         Oper. 100 1 4 5 1,351 100/0
2  Reserves for future projects 152,000$       Oper.

Subtotal: Benton County 192,250$       
130% Sub-allocation for Benton Co/Adair Village/Monroe 192,290$       

City of Albany (North Albany)
No projects submitted

130% Sub-allocation for North Albany 36,840$         

Total for All Agencies in Benton County Allocation 1,206,600$    

 Grand Total: 130% STIF Project List 1,139,350$    

  Exceeds 100% Level Countywide Allocation by 

← Capacity for New Operations and Capital Projects in next Biennium



 
*** Memorandum *** 

 
 

TO:  Benton County STIF Advisory Committee 

FROM:  Lisa Scherf, Transportation Services Supervisor  
  Qualified Entity Representative 

SUBJECT:  STIF Discretionary Project Application Review 

DATE:  March 15, 2019 

 

BACKGROUND  

The Oregon Legislature created the Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) with the passage of 
House Bill 2017 in 2017.  Three public transit funding programs were established: Formula, Discretionary, and 
Statewide Transit Network.  The STIF Rules Committee, which was tasked with the implementation of HB 2017 
through the Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR’s), established a role for local STIF Advisory Committees in the 
review of STIF Discretionary grant applications for their respective areas. 

The table below shows the total statewide discretionary funds which are available and will be allocated 
through the ODOT solicitation, which closed on February 1, 2019: 

 

Funding Sources Amount 

 STIF Discretionary Fund (5%) $11.2 M 

Statewide Transit Network Program:  

 STIF Intercommunity Fund (4%) $9.0 M 

 FTA Section 5311(f) Intercity funds $1.3 M 
 Total Statewide Discretionary Funds: $21.5 M 

 

The Discretionary Fund is intended to provide a flexible funding source to improve public transportation in 
Oregon. It can be used for operations (such as a pilot program), but is not a source of ongoing operations 
funding. 

The lntercommunity Discretionary Fund is for improving connections between communities, and between 
communities and other key destinations important for a connected Statewide Transit Network.  As a 
competitive funding source, ongoing operations Projects are subject to risk of not receiving continuous 
funding. 

DISCUSSION 

Per the STIF Rules, the STIF Advisory Committees are to provide a "fund" or "do not fund" recommendation to 
the Oregon Transportation Commission for each STIF Discretionary application that the Qualified Entity (QE - 
Benton County) receives from ODOT. While not required, each Advisory Committee may also prioritize the 
projects, and recommend a prioritized list of Projects, which the QE will provide to ODOT. Finally, the Advisory 



STIF Discretionary Project Review Staff Report 
March 15, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 

Committee may submit additional comments on one or more projects, if desired. The STIF Advisory 
Committee input on STIF Discretionary applications is due back to ODOT no later than April 12, 2019. 

Per the guidance provided by ODOT, when reviewing a Project proposal for acceptance, rejection or 
prioritization, the Advisory Committee shall consider the extent to which the Project: 

• Supports the program Purpose, as applicable, of the Discretionary Fund or the lntercommunity 
Discretionary Fund, as described above; 

• Meets the Project Selection criteria established under OAR 732-044-0030(1), as described below; and 

• Meets any additional criteria established by the Oregon Transportation Commission (OTC). 

Project Selection Criteria Under OAR 732-044-0030(1) 

The Commission's investment priorities are: 

a) Improvement of Public Transportation Service to Low-Income Households;  

b) Improved Coordination between Public Transportation Service Providers and reduced fragmentation  
of Public Transportation Services;  

c) Consistency with Oregon Public Transportation Plan goals, policies, and implementation plans, 
including: 

1. Integrated public transportation planning where affected communities planned or partnered to 
develop proposed Projects. 

2. Technological innovations that improve efficiencies and promote a seamless and easy to use 
Statewide Transit Network. 

3. Advancement of State greenhouse gas emission reduction goals. 

4. Support or improvement of a useful and well connected Statewide Transit Network;  

5. Operations Projects that do not substantially rely on discretionary state funding beyond a pilot 
phase; 

6. Geographic equity or an ability to leverage other funds (these factors apply when all other 
priorities are held equal); and  

7. Other factors as determined by the Commission. 

Additionally, the OTC has established six evaluation criteria that correspond to Goals in the Oregon Public 
Transportation Plan.  Some further develop the investment priorities in 1 – 7 above, while others are in 
addition to these priorities.  They are displayed in the table on the following page.    

 

  



STIF Discretionary Project Review Staff Report 
March 15, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 

 Score 
Weighting 

Focus Areas STIF/STN Evaluation Criteria     STIF 
Disc. STN 

 
Equity and Public Transportation 
Service to Low-income 
Households 

OPTP goal: 
• Equity 

• Improves public transportation service (e.g., service levels, 
programs, information, and supporting infrastructure) to low- 
income households. OAR 732-044-0030(1)(a) 

• Improves or expands service to vulnerable or transportation- 
disadvantaged populations (e.g. seniors, people with 
disabilities). OAR 732-044-0030(1)(c) 

 
20% 

 
10% 

Coordination of Public 
Transportation Services 

OPTP goal: 
• Communication, 

Collaboration, & 
Coordination 

• Improves coordination between public transportation providers 
and reduces fragmentation of public transportation services. 
OAR 732-044-0030(1)(b) 

• Provides integrated planning where affected communities will 
plan or partner to develop public transportation project(s). OAR 
732-044-0030(1)(c)(A) 

 
10% 

 
30% 

Statewide Transit Network 
Connections 

OPTP goals 
• Mobility & Public 

Transportation User 
Experience 

• Accessibility and 
Connectivity 

• Improves or maintains service between geographically 
separated communities. OAR 732-044-0030(1)(c)(D) 

• Implements technological innovations that improve efficiencies 
and supports a seamless, easy-to-use Statewide Transit 
Network. OAR 732-044-0030(1)(c)(B) 

• Improves local connections and infrastructure at inter-regional 
transit hubs or develops service improvements and approaches 
that can be replicated statewide. OAR 732-044-0030(1)(c) 

 

10% 

 

30% 

Environmental and Public Health 

OPTP goals 
• Environmental Sustainability 
• Health 

• Reduces greenhouse gas emissions in or through public 
transportation systems. OAR 732-044-0030(1)(c)(C) 

• Supports positive health outcomes. OAR 732-044-0030(1)(c) 

 
15% 

 
10% 

Sustainable Funding 

OPTP goal 
• Funding and Strategic 

Investment 

 
• Does not substantially rely on discretionary state funding 

beyond a pilot phase (i.e. project is short-term or has reasonable 
fund sources identified to sustain project-related transit services 
after discretionary funds expended). OAR 732-044-0030(1)(d) 

 
20% 

 
10% 

Safety, Security, and Community 
Livability 

OPTP goals 
• Safety and security 
• Community livability and 

economic vitality 

 
• Protects fleet condition and ensures vehicles are maintained in a 

state of good repair. OAR 732-044-0030(1)(c) 

• Results in increased use and participation in active 
transportation, including public transportation. OAR 732-044- 
0030(1)(c) 

 

25% 

 

10% 

  



STIF Discretionary Project Review Staff Report 
March 15, 2019 
Page 4 
 
 

Discretionary project applications were received by the following Public Transportation Service Providers 
(PTSPs) within Benton County: Benton County, City of Corvallis (Corvallis Transit System), City of Philomath 
(Philomath Connection), Oregon State University (OSU) Office of Sponsored Research, Oregon Cascades West 
Council of Governments (OCWCOG), and the City of Albany (Linn Benton Loop).  Additionally, project 
applications were received by partner agencies Lincoln County and the Northwest Connector Alliance, and one 
from the Central Oregon Breeze.  Attachment A summarizes information from each project application.  
Following is a brief description of the discretionary projects. Project lettering corresponds to the lettering in 
Attachment A. The dollars listed are the requested STIF Discretionary funds, not including the required match. 
 

A.  Corvallis Transit System Service (CTS) Bus  ($366,328) 

Funds purchase of a new 35-ft urban transit CTS bus, with 32 seats and 2 ADA wheelchair stations. This bus is 
required to implement CTS expansion planned with STIF Formula funds. 

B.  Philomath Connection (PC) Bus  ($402,300) 

Funds purchase of a replacement 35-ft urban transit PC bus, with 32 seats and 2 ADA wheelchair stations. One 
PC bus is permanently out of service and the backup is currently in full-time service. 

C.  GTFS-ride: OSU Expansion of Transit Ridership Reporting  ($530,781) 

ODOT and OSU originally developed the universal General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data standard. It 
has been adapted by Oregon agencies, but no agency is yet fully reporting with GTFS data standards. This 
project builds on that effort to: a) identify up to three candidate transit agencies and assist them to fully 
implement the GTFS reporting requirements; and b) potentially expand GTFS beyond only fixed-route transit 
modes.   

D.  Coast to Valley (CTV) Service Expansion - Benton County  ($377,132) 

The CTV Express is co-operated by Lincoln and Benton Counties, with each providing two round trips per day 
between Newport and Corvallis/Albany. This project funds Benton County's portion of a CTV expansion.  It 
includes the purchase one 22-passenger, 2 ADA wheelchair station bus and two additional round trips per day.  
This will provide a total of eight round trips, seven days per week. All runs would continue to the Albany 
Amtrak Station. The expansion would absorb the current Corvallis to Amtrak Connector service.  It is scalable 
to include the bus and one additional run per day. 

E.  Linn-Benton Loop Expansion Bus  ($352,000) 

Funds purchase of a new 40-ft urban transit Loop bus, with 35 seats and 2 ADA wheelchair stations. This bus is 
required to implement the service expansion planned with STIF Formula funds from Linn and Benton Counties. 

F.  Coast to Valley Service Expansion - Lincoln County  ($721,800) 

This project funds the Lincoln County portion of the service expansion described in Project D above (bus and 
two additional round trips per day).  It is scalable to include the bus and one additional run per day. 

G. 99W Corridor Transit Feasibility Analysis and Implementation  ($744,606) 

This project will be managed by OCWCOG, partnering with ODOT. The first phase will conduct a transit 
corridor evaluation of Highway 99W from Junction City to McMinnville. If transit service is determined 
feasible, a bus will be purchased and pilot transit service implemented to gauge long-term ridership potential.  



STIF Discretionary Project Review Staff Report 
March 15, 2019 
Page 5 
 
 

H.  Providing a Seamless Transit Experience  ($447,977) 

This project, proposed by OCWCOG, will centralize transit driver and staff training and ADA ridership eligibility 
determination.  It would also pilot a publicly available one-on-one travel training service and establish a new 
regional transit website that includes online trip planning; real-time bus location; and centralized mobile 
ticketing for passengers across Linn, Benton and Lincoln Counties.  

I.  NWOTA Website Trip Planner Enhancement Project  ($134,840) 

Benton County is a member of the Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance, branded as the NW Connector, through 
operation of the Coast to Valley Express. This project would upgrade the current online trip planner on the 
NW Connector website. The end result will be enhanced passenger trip planning capability and a template 
other transit systems in Oregon can adapt at low cost. 

J.   Central Oregon Breeze Bus  ($148,000) 

Funds purchase of a new 35-ft mass transit bus, with 32 seats and 2 ADA wheelchair stations. This bus would 
be used for service in Central Oregon and the applicant, Central Oregon Breeze, will explore the expansion of 
service from the Bend/Redmond area to Corvallis. 
 
The total of all projects forwarded to the Benton County STIF Advisory Committee for FY18-19 through FY20-
21 is $4,225,764.  Staff will lead the Committee through a simple evaluation of the projects. 

ACTION REQUESTED  

Review STIF Discretionary Projects received from area PTSPs and partner agencies, considering the guidance 
regarding STIF Discretionary review criteria. Provide a “Fund” or “Do Not Fund” determination for each 
project. Determine if the Committee wishes to prioritize the projects or add additional comments regarding 
any of the projects.  

Attachments: A – STIF Discretionary Project Summary  
 
 



ID 
No. PROJECT TITLE Requesting 

Agency Project Cost STIF $ 
Requested Project Category

Requires
On-going 

Operations 
Funding?

Meets One or 
More STIF 

Discretionary 
Goals?

Comments Fund? Ranking

A. Corvallis Transit System Bus Corvallis Transit 
System 457,910$              366,328$          Capital No Yes

B. Philomath Connection Transit Bus City of Philomath 
(CTS) 447,000$              402,300$          Capital No Yes

C. GTFS-Ride: OSU Expansion of 
Transit Ridership Reporting

OSU Office of 
Sponsored 
Research

663,476$              530,781$          Planning and 
Operations No Yes

D. Coast to Valley Service Expansion - 
Benton County 

Benton County 
Transportation 419,036$              377,132$          Capital and 

Operations Yes Yes

E. Linn-Benton Loop 
Expansion Bus

Albany Transit 
(dba LB Loop) 440,000$              352,000$          Capital No Yes

F. Coast to Valley Service Expansion - 
Lincoln County 

Lincoln County 
Transit 802,000$              721,800$          Capital and

Operations Yes Yes

G. 99W Corridor Transit Feasibility 
Analysis and Implementation OCWCOG 827,340$              744,606$          Planning, Capital, 

and Operations Yes Yes

H. Providing a Seamless 
Transit Experience OCWCOG 497,752$              447,977$          Mobility Management 

and Capital No Yes

I. NWOTA Website Trip Planner 
Enhancement Project

Tillamook County 
Transit (dba 

NW Connector)
149,000$              134,840$          Mobility Management Yes Yes

J. Central Oregon Breeze Bus Central Oregon 
Breeze 185,000$              148,000$          Capital Yes Yes

4,225,764$       

      Benton County STIF Advisory Committee - Discretionary Projects Summary - March 15, 2019

Total Discretionary Project STIF Funding Request:


	1. Call Meeting to Order, Introductions (2 minutes)
	2. Public Comment Period (Speakers limited to 3 minutes)
	3. Approve Minutes of January 18, 2019 Meeting  (2 minutes)
	4. Old Business  (90 minutes)
	a) STIF Formula Projects - Review Staff Report
	b) Develop Formula Project Recommendation for BOC
	5. New Business  (60 minutes)
	a) STIF Discretionary Projects - Review Staff Report
	b) Develop Recommendation for ODOT
	6. Next Steps (3 minutes)
	a) Tuesday, April 2 10:00am – Board of Commissioners Work Session
	b) Tuesday, April 16 12:00pm – Board of Commissioners Meeting
	c) Wednesday, May 1 – STIF Plans Due to ODOT
	NEXT MEETING (if needed):   Monday, April 1, 2019, 8:30-10:00 am
	STIF Discretionary Project Summary-LS.pdf
	STIF Discr Grants

	STIF Formula Project Summary by Year.pdf
	STIF Comm List


